
#plymlicensing

Licensing Sub Committee

Tuesday 20 December 2016
10.00 am
Council House, Plymouth

Members:
Councillors Hendy, Dr Mahony and Rennie

Fourth Member:
Councillor Churchill

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf.

Please note that, due to the nature of this Committee, we may need to send ‘to follow’ 
documents which were not expected at the time of the agenda publication.  These documents 
may be considered under part I or part II.

For further information on attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic 
process please follow this link - http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings

Tracey Lee
Chief Executive

Democratic Support
Chief Executive’s Department
Plymouth City Council
Floor 3 (West) Ballard House
West Hoe Road
Plymouth  PL1 3BJ

Please ask for  Helen Wright/Kristin 
Barnes
T 01752 304022/307903
E 
helen.wright@plymouth.gov.uk/kristi
n.barnes@plymouth.gov.uk
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy
Published 09 December 2016

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/


Licensing Sub Committee

Agenda

1. Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair  

The Committee will appoint a Chair and Vice-Chair for this particular meeting.

2. Apologies  

To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members.

3. Declarations of Interest  

Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 
agenda.

4. Chair's Urgent Business  

To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 
forward for urgent consideration.

5. Application for Renewal and Variation Of Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence for Temptations T2, 6-8 Union 
Street, Plymouth  

(Pages 1 - 24)

The Interim Director of Public Health will submit a report in relation to the application 
for Renewal and Variation of Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence for Temptations T2, 6-
8 Union Street, Plymouth.

6. Exempt Business  

To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended 
by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.



Part II - Private Meeting

Agenda

Members of the Public to Note
that under the law, the Panel is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.

7. Additional Information Relating to the Application for 
Renewal and Variation of Sexual Entertainment Venue 
Licence for Temptations T2, 6-8 Union Street, Plymouth  

(Pages 25 - 30)

The Sub Committee will consider additional confidential information in relation to the 
application.





  
PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Temptations T2, 6-8 Union Street, Plymouth

Renewal and Variation of Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence.

Committee: Licensing Sub Committee  

Date: 20 December 2016

           Cabinet Member: Councillor John Riley

CMT Member: Ruth Harrell (Office of the Director of Public Health)

Author:                              Frederick Prout Senior Licencing Officer

Contact details 01752 304792
email: licensing@plymouth.gov.uk

 Ref: ERS/LIC/PREM/SEV

            Key Decision: No 

            Part:                                  I  

Purpose of the report:

An application has been received from Temptations T2 Ltd in respect of the premises known as 
Temptations T2, 6-8 Union Street, Plymouth for the renewal and variation of a sexual entertainment 
venue licence under Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, as 
amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2009.

 Our Plan - One City Council 2016 to 2019:
This report links to the delivery of the City and Council objectives and outcomes
within the plan.

Growing: The Sex Establishments Licensing Policy provides a balance between the need to protect 
residents against enabling legitimate businesses to operate within a necessary and proportionate 
regulatory framework.

Caring: Reduce Inequalities as the Sex Establishments Licensing Policy has put in place an appropriate 
framework that will allow decision-makers, when considering applications, to reduce the impact on 
safety, well-being and local amenity on the local community. The licensing system must minimise the 
burdens on business and to allow communities the opportunity to influence decisions.

See  Our Plan

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:    
Including finance, human, IT and land
Not applicable

mailto:licensing@plymouth.gov.uk
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/homepage/councilanddemocracy/aboutus/ourplan.htm
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/homepage/councilanddemocracy/aboutus/ourplan.htm


Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk 
Management:
Members should be aware that Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 puts a statutory duty 
on every Local Authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the need to do all that 
it reasonably can do to prevent crime and disorder in its area.

The Policy has a key role in protecting workers in sex establishments and reducing the risk of sexual 
offences linked to the operation of sex establishments.

 

Equality and Diversity

 Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?   Yes with no significant findings

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:
That Members consider this report.

Alternative options considered and rejected:
None

Published work / information:

Sex Establishments Licensing Policy
Home Office Sexual Entertainment Guidance for England and Wales
Policing and Crime Act 2009

Background papers:

Exemption Paragraph NumberTitle Part 1 Part II
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Application 1
Information 1

  

Sign off:   

Fin Leg 2700
5/ag/
6.12.
16

Mon 
Off

HR Assets IT Strat 
Proc

Originating SMT Member
Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report?   No  

http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/sex_establishment_licensing_policy.pdf
http://www.licensingresource.co.uk/sites/all/files/sex/sev_guidance.pdf
http://www.licensingresource.co.uk/sites/all/files/sex/sev_guidance.pdf
http://www.licensingresource.co.uk/sites/all/files/sex/sev_guidance.pdf
http://www.licensingresource.co.uk/sites/all/files/sex/sev_guidance.pdf
http://www.licensingresource.co.uk/sites/all/files/sex/sev_guidance.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2009/26/contents


 1.0    INTRODUCTION

1.1 On the 03 November 2016, the licensing department received an application from Temptations 
T2 Ltd for the renewal and variation of hours of a sexual entertainment venue licence under 
Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (the Act), as 
amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2009 in respect of the premises known as Temptations 
T2 situated at 6-8 Union Street, Plymouth.

1.2  The Policing and Crime Act 2009 amended the 1982 Act in so far as it related to the licensing 
of sex establishments by adding the new category of ‘sexual entertainment venue’.

1.3 A Sexual Entertainment Venue means any premises at which relevant entertainment is provided 
before a live audience for the financial gain of the organiser or entertainer. Relevant 
entertainment means any live performance or any live display of nudity which is of such nature 
that ignoring financial gain it must reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or principally 
for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the audience (whether by verbal or 
other means).  It may also mean a shop etc

1.4    Relevant entertainment is considered to be;

        1. lap dancing
        2. pole dancing
        3. table dancing
        4. strip shows
        5. peep shows
        6. live sex shows

1.5 Full Council resolved to adopt Schedule 3 of the Act on the 30 January 2012, to be effective 
from the 5 March 2012. The Council also resolved to adopt a Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 
(the Policy) which provides the framework within which all applications and other decision-
making will be considered.

1.6 The premises were granted a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence on the 13 November 2012 
and renewed on expiry in 2013, 2014 and 2015 by delegated powers.

2.0 THE APPLICATION

2.1 The premises are situated on the first and second floor of 6-8 Union Street, Plymouth with the 
performers changing rooms located on the second floor. The application is to provide lap     
dancing, pole dancing, private dances, striptease and VIP dancing. 

2.2   The application was correctly advertised in the Western Evening Herald on 11 November 2016 
as required by the Act                                             

2.3 The hours applied for are

Sunday to Monday 11:00 pm to 05:00 am  (Current hours granted)  

A variation to open on the week leading to Christmas

Monday 19 December 2016 to Friday 23 December 2016 inclusive Midday to 
05:00 am               

 

2.4 The following documents which formed part of the application are attached to this report 
marked Appendix A, as they are considered relevant to this application.

Use of Social Networking Sites



System for checking age and the right to work within the UK

Monitoring and Enforcing Code of Practice

Rules for customers

Welfare of Performers

Schedule of conditions

 
2.5 The premises is located in Union St, an area governed by a quantity limit statement as defined 

in the policy which is a factor that should be considered when determining this application. The 
Policy states:

‘The Act allows the Council to determine a number of sex establishments in a specific locality. 
This can include determining that the appropriate number is nil. The Council considers that 
there is an over-riding public interest to justify quantity limits for the areas known as Union St 
and the City Centre to avoid an excessive build up of sex establishments, thereby undermining 
the character and nature of the designated areas.

Whilst applications will be determined based on their individual merits there will be a 
presumption against granting additional licenses in areas where the number considered 
appropriate for that locality have already been granted.

The Council will not take account of commercial need. This is a matter for market forces and 
may be a relevant consideration for planning applications. The existence or absence of suitable 
planning approval is not a relevant consideration for the Council, but is a matter for the 
applicant.

For each of the following areas the number of sex establishments considered as appropriate is;

Location No of Sex Shops/Cinemas No of Sexual 
Entertainment Venues

Union 
Street

1 2

City 
Centre

1 Nil

For all other localities the appropriate number will be nil’.

2.6 Temptations T2 Ltd already hold a premises licence under the provisions of the Licensing Act 
2003 for these premises which allows the sale of alcohol and regulated entertainment. The 
application under consideration is separate to these provisions. A copy of the current premises 
licence is attached within Appendix B.

2.7 The premises licence issued in accordance with the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 will 
remain in force regardless of the determination of this application, as this is required in order 
to permit the lawful sale of alcohol from these premises and any other form of regulated 
entertainment.

2.8 When determining a licence application, the local authority must have regard to any rights the 
applicant may have under Article 10 (right to freedom of expression) and Article 1, Protocol 1 
(protection of property) of the European Convention of Human Rights.

Existing businesses have limited rights to continue trading even though it may not completely 
accord with the new policy aspirations and expectations.

Members should be aware that these premises are an existing business that pre-dates the 



adoption of Schedule 3 of the Act.

2.9 Members should be aware that the hours applied for in the application conflict with parameters 
set out in the Sex Establishments Licensing Policy in respect to Sunday opening.

The Policy states:

‘The Council will apply hours of operation that are commensurate to the existing use of the 
area and its effect on the locality.  There shall be normally be no operation of licensable 
activities on Sundays and Good Friday (6am to midnight), Christmas Day or Easter Sunday.  
Alternative opening restrictions may be put into place dependant on the character of each 
locality and representations received’.

Members have departed from the Policy for these premises upon hearing suitable 
representations on this point at the hearing for the grant of the S E V Licence.

3.0 REPRESENTATIONS 

3.1 No objections have been received to this application within the 28 day consultation period.

4.0 CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 The Committee must have regard to the Council’s Sex Establishments Licensing Policy in its 
decision-making. In particular the following licensing objectives will be taken into account when 
determining an application and any conditions attached will be necessary and designed to 
achieve these licensing objectives 

 Prevention of crime and disorder

 Protection of safety, health and public decency

 Prevention of nuisance

 Protection form children from harm

 Protecting the nature, amenity and character of a neighbourhood

4.2 Members should be aware that Licensing Committee resolved to adopt a pool of licensing 
conditions that provides applicants, responsible authorities and Members with a resource from 
which conditions can be attached to a licence granted under Schedule 3 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. This pool of conditions is not exhaustive and 
may be altered, amended or varied depending on the individual circumstances of each particular 
application. 

4.3 Paragraph 12 of Schedule 3 of the Act sets out the grounds for refusing an application for the 
grant, renewal or transfer of a licence.

Mandatory grounds for refusal:

A licence must not be granted:

(a) to a person under the age of 18;

(b) to a person who is for the time being disqualified due to the person having had a previous 
licence revoked in the area of the appropriate authority within the last 12 months;

(c) to a person, other than a body corporate, who is not resident in an EEA State or was not 
so resident throughout the period of six months immediately preceding the date when 
the application was made; or

(d) to a body corporate which is not incorporated in an EEA State: or



(e) to a person who has, within a period of 12 months immediately preceding the date when 
the application was made, been refused the grant or renewal of a licence for the premises, 
vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of which the application is made, unless the refusal has 
been reversed on appeal.

None of the above applies to the licence applied for.

Discretionary grounds for refusal:

A licence may be refused where:

(a) the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having been convicted of an 
offence or for any other reason;

(b) if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred the business to which it relates 
would be managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person, other than the applicant, 
who would be refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a licence if he made the 
application himself;

(c) the number of sex establishments, or of sex establishments of a similar kind, in the 
relevant locality at the time the application is determined is equal to or exceeds the 
number which the authority consider is appropriate for that locality;

(d) that the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate,

having regard-

(1) to the character of the relevant locality; or

(2) to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or

(3) to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect 
of which the application is made

A decision to refuse a licence must be relevant to one or more of the above grounds.

4.4 The Provision of Services Regulations 2009 amended Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act to state that, 
if having considered an application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence, the 
appropriate authority decides to refuse it on one or more of the above ground’s, it must 
provide the applicant with reasons for the decision in writing. 

Having considered the application and representations, the Sub-Committee may

 Grant a licence in accordance with the application

 Grant a licence subject to additional and/or varied conditions

 Reject the application

             



 Appendix A

















 Appendix B















                





                                  






	Agenda
	5 Application for Renewal and Variation of Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence for Temptations T2, 6-8 Union Street, Plymouth
	7 Additional information relating to the Application for Renewal and Variation of Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence for Temptations T2, 6-8 Union Street, Plymouth

